
 
CC HH AA RR LL EE SS TT OO NN   AA RR EE AA   RR EE GG II OO NN AA LL   TT RR AA NN SS PP OO RR TT AA TT II OO NN   AA UU TT HH OO RR II TT YY   

  
CCAARRTTAA  BBOOAARRDD  MMEEEETTIINNGG  

 
September 28, 2016 

1:00 PM 
 

Lonnie Hamilton III Public Service Building 
4045 Bridgeview Drive, Room B-225 

North Charleston, SC  29405 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  
 

1. Call to Order  

2. Consideration of Board Minutes –July 20, 2016 Meeting   

3. Financial Status Report – Robin Mitchum 

4. FY15/16 Budget Revision – Robin Mitchum 

5. FY16/17 Budget – Request for Approval – Robin Mitchum 

6. Automatic Passenger Counter Request for Proposals – Request for Approval 

7. Management Services Agreement with BCDCOG – Request for Approval 

8. SC Works Charleston Lease Agreement with CARTA – Request for Approval 

9. Operating Policies and Procedures – Request for Approval 

10. Paratransit Service Riders Guide – Request for Approval 

11. Intermodal Facility Project Update – Jeff Burns 

12. Executive Director’s Report 

13. Other Business, If Any 

14. Public Comments, If Any 

15. Board Comments, If Any 

16. Adjournment  

       
      

Please note that the next regularly scheduled meeting of the CARTA Board will be WEDNESDAY, 
October 19, 2016 in Room B-225 of the Lonnie Hamilton III Public Service Building, 4045 

Bridgeview Drive, North Charleston, SC  29405.  Notice, including agenda documentation, will 
be sent to Board Members in advance of the meeting, as well as posted on 

www.ridecarta.com. 



 

CHARLESTON AREA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

JULY 20, 2016 
 
 
The Charleston Area Regional Transportation Authority (CARTA) Board of Directors met on Wednesday, 
July 20, 2016, at the Lonnie Hamilton III Public Service Building located at 4045 Bridgeview Drive, Room 
B‐225 in North Charleston, South Carolina. 
 
MEMBERSHIP:    Ed  Astle; Mary  Beth  Berry; Marty  Bettelli; Michael  Brown;  Colleen  Condon;  Alfred 
Harrison; Will Haynie;  James  Lewis; Charles  Lipuma; Katie McClure; Minnie Newman; Pat O’Neil;  Joe 
Qualey; Gary Santos; Michael Seekings; Elliott Summey; Keith Summey; John Tecklenburg 
 
MEMBERSHIP  PRSENT:    Ed Astle; Mary  Beth  Berry; Michael  Brown;  Colleen  Condon;  Katie McClure; 
Michael Seekings   
 
PROXIES:  Dennis Turner for Minnie Newman; Jerry Lahm for Elliott Summey; Carla Ritter for Joe Qualey; 
Michael Mathis for John Tecklenburg   
 
STAFF PRESENT:   Ron Mitchum; Andrea Kozloski; Robin Mitchum; Ryan McClure;  Jeff Burns; Michelle 
Emerson; Rainee Kearney; Kim Coleman 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  William Clark (Clark Eustace Wagner, CPA); Amy Jenkins (MGC); Sharon Hollis (Davis 
&  Floyd);  Daniel  Brock  (Rawle  Murdy  Associates);  Ginger  Stevens  (Transdev);  L.  Sanders  (Coach 
Operator‐CARTA);  Councilmember  Dean  Riegel  (City  of  Charleston); William  Hamilton  (Public);  Dave 
Crossley (Public)  

 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Seekings called the CARTA Board Meeting to order at 1:05 p.m. followed by a moment of 
silence.   
 

2. Public Hearing – FTA Section 5307 and 5339 Applications 
Ron Mitchum, Executive Director, read the FTA Section 5307 and 5339 Application Notices.   There 
were two public comments stating approval and support of the applications.   The comments were 
noted for the record.   No other public comments were made.   Chairman Seekings then closed the 
Public Hearing. 
 

3. Consideration of Board Minutes – June 15, 2016 Meeting 
Michael Brown made a motion to approve the June 15, 2016 Meeting Notes as presented and Ed 
Astle seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 

4. Audit Presentation – W. Chris Clark, CPA 
Chris Clark, of Clark Eustace Wagner, CPA, presented the  Independent Auditor’s Report.   Mr. Clark 
commended Robin Mitchum and  the Finance Staff  for  their work on  the audit.   He discussed  the 
findings  in detail noting some areas  that are opportunities  for strengthening  internal controls and 
operating efficiency.   Specific  recommendations have been discussed with appropriate personnel.   
The Board received the Audit Presentation as information. 



 

 
5. Financial Status Report – Robin Mitchum 

Robin Mitchum, Finance Manager, presented the financial status report for the period ending June 
30, 2016.   She reported  that  the agency revenues and expenditures are  in good shape.   Excess of 
revenues  over  expenditures  total  $876,040.    The  Board  received  the  financial  status  report  as 
information. 
 

6. FY16/17 Budget Presentation – Robin Mitchum 
Robin Mitchum,  Finance Manager,  presented  the  FY16/17  proposed  budget  to  the  Board.   Ms. 
Mitchum noted the budget is 11% or $3,877,749 increase over the FY15/16 budget.  Revenues and 
expenditures were discussed in detail.  The budget will continue to be monitored to insure revenues 
and expenditures remain aligned.  Recommended revisions will be made as needed.  A rough draft 
of  the  proposed  budget will  go  before  respective  City  and  County  Council,  Finance  and Ways & 
Means Committee meetings prior to finalization for Board approval in September. 
Colleen Condon made a motion to approve the FY16/17 Proposed Budget Presentation contingent 
upon  recommended  changes and Ed Astle  seconded  the motion.   The motion was unanimously 
approved.  
 

7. DASH Logo Rebranding – Michelle Emerson 
Michelle  Emerson, Marketing  Coordinator,  presented  the  DASH  logo  rebranding.   Ms.  Emerson 
relayed  the  DASH  Rebranding  Concept  Committee’s  recommendations  for  the  new  logo.    The 
committee was careful  to create ad‐free zones on  the  full  front,  top of  the back and  top of both 
sides of all shuttles for easy recognition.  The DASH logo on the front will remain the same to avoid 
confusion.    The  committee  was  cognizant  in  keeping  with  the  Charleston  image  by  using  the 
pineapple symbol and the Charleston Green color.   The Transit Riders Advisory Committee and the 
Transit  Ambassadors  will  review  the  recommended  changes  prior  to  launching  the  rebranded 
shuttles in the early Fall.  The Board received the DASH logo rebranding presentation as information. 

 

8. Ridership Report – Rainee Kearney 
Rainee Kearney, Transit Coordinator, presented the ridership statistics for June 2016: 

 Ridership  for  June was 319,859, a decrease of 20% over  last year  (which  is a decrease of 
75,401 passenger trips).  Year‐to‐date, ridership is down by 17.2%.   

 Routes that did not meet performance standards include: Rt. 41‐Coleman Boulevard; Rt. 42‐
Wando  Circulator;  Rt.  102‐North  Neck/Rutledge  Avenue;  Rt.  104‐Montague  Avenue;  Rt. 
204‐MUSC/Calhoun. 

 The system‐wide cost per passenger was $2.42, compared to $1.77 last year. 

 Revenue for the month was $375,501.97, which is a decrease of 12% from last year.  Year‐
to‐date, revenue is up by 2.2%.  

 Farebox recovery for the system was 32.7%. 

 Tel‐A‐Ride ridership for the month was 6,033, which is a 13.2% decrease when compared to 
the same period last year.  Year‐to‐date, ridership is down by 12%. 

 The cost per Tel‐A‐Ride trip was $25.30, which is a 13% increase over June of last year.  The 
average cost is 15.2% more than last year’s average. 

The Board received the ridership report as information. 
 
 
 



 

 
9. Intermodal Facility Project Update – Jeff Burns 

Jeff Burns, Senior Planner, updated the Board on the Intermodel Facility Project.  The project team 
finalized  the building and  site design plans.   Staff  submitted  the purchase/sale agreement  to CSX 
Corporation  and  is  preparing  draft  lease  agreements  for  the  partner  agencies.    A  Request  for 
Proposal was  circulated  to  procure  the  services  of  a  firm  to  layout  and  supply materials  for  the 
Amtrak History  and  Liberty Hill  Community  Heritage  Room.    A  project  update  presentation was 
delivered  to  the Liberty Hill Community at  their monthly meeting.   A  third party cost estimator  is 
reviewing the plans and will submit an estimated cost to construct the facility.  The Board received 
the Intermodal Facility Project Update as information. 
 

10. Executive Director’s Report 
Ron Mitchum, Executive Director, highlighted the following matters and respectfully requested that 
the Board read his full report when time permits: 

 Davis & Floyd has completed the preliminary site plans for 16 of the 21 sites for shelters or 
benches along Ashley Phosphate and Dorchester Roads.  They are awaiting survey work on 
the  remaining  five  sites.    The  plans  for  4  of  the  9  shelters  to  date  would  require  the 
placement of shelters on private property due to  limited SCDOT right of way.    In addition, 
SCDOT has indicated that they would prefer that we not place any new shelters in their right 
of way but utilize private property.   We will meet with SCDOT  to discuss  the use of  their 
right of way as we would prefer not to acquire any property if possible. 

 We  have met  with  the  College  of  Charleston  and MUSC  and  anticipate  renewing  both 
contracts  at  the  current  rates.    They  are  aware  that  we  are  replacing  equipment  and 
implementing new technology, therefore, there will be a reasonable increase in the contract 
rate next year. 

 We request the Board’s input on changing the name of the NASH to clarify that it provides 
service  to  the  airport.    If  no  objection, Rawle Murdy Associates will work  on  developing 
potential new names for the Board’s consideration. 

The Board received the Executive Director’s report as information. 
 

11. Other Business, If Any 
 Daniel Brock, with Rawle Murdy Associates, updated  the Board on social media outreach, 

projects and events.  The update was received as information.  

 Councilmember Riegel  thanked  the Board and Transdev  for  their  tremendous efforts.   He 
also  encouraged  the  government  entities  to  contribute  their  fair‐share  regarding  funding 
aspects and referendums. 

There was no other business discussed. 
 

12. Public Comments, If Any 

 Two  public  comments  were  received  regarding  ridership,  route  schedules  and  sales  tax 
referendum concerns. 

The public comments were noted for the record. 
 

13. Board Comments, If Any 

 Board Member McClure  requested  that  a  brief  job  description  of  CARTA  personnel  be 
provided to the Board for information purposes.   



 

 Board Member  Astle  commended Gloria,  a  bus  operator,  for  her  nearly  3 million miles, 
excellent  service  and  personable  interactions  with  all  passengers.    He  also  relayed  a 
comment from a passenger regarding timeliness and transportation to beaches.   Mr. Astle 
encouraged all Board Members to ride the bus. 

 Chairman Seekings thanked County Council for voting in favor of funding and thanked those 
who rode the bus and participated in “Dump the Pump Day.” 

There were no additional Board comments. 

14. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 2:40 p.m. 
 
 
                Respectfully submitted, 
                Kim Coleman 









































 
 

CARTA 
Charleston Area Regional Transportation Authority 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
TO:  Ron Mitchum, CARTA Executive Director  
 
FROM:  Jeffrey Burns, Planning & Operations Manager  
 
DATE:  July 7, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Intermodal Center Project Update 
  
CC:  file 
 
 
Over the last month, the project team finalized the building and site design plans.  Staff submitted the 
purchase/sale agreement to CSX Corporation and is preparing draft lease agreements for the partner 
agencies.  A Request for Proposals was circulated to procure the services of a firm to layout and supply 
materials for the Amtrak History and Liberty Hill Community Heritage Room.  A project update 
presentation was delivered to the Liberty Hill Community at their monthly meeting.  Lastly, a third party 
cost estimator is reviewing the plan and will submit an estimated cost to construct the facility. 
 
The following is a brief overview of accomplishments and milestones.   

 
1) Project Timeline:  

a. Overall, the project is tracking about 6 month beyond the original schedule as impacted by the 
progress in negotiating the MOUs 

b. Receipt of the construction cost estimate based on the 100% design plans is the next major 
concern for the project team.   

 
2) A&E Design 

a. Building and site work has been completed by Davis & Floyd 
b. The project team holds weekly meeting to discuss issues as they arise 
 

3) Permitting & Zoning:  Scheduled for August 2016 
 

4) NEPA/NHPA 
a. The Draft Environmental Assessment document was approved by FTA.  The 30-day public 

comment period closed on January 4, 2016 
b. A Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) is anticipated to be approved by FTA in late 

January 2016 
 
 
 



5) Amtrak Coordination 
a. The project team finalized negotiations with Amtrak.  Amtrak has agreed to retain ownership of 

the boarding platform, which absolves CARTA and the City of North Charleston from carrying 
the cost of insurance.   

 
6) Real Estate Process: 

a. An appraisal of the Gaynor St. site has been completed.  A review appraisal has been completed. 
b. A partially executed Purchase & Sale Agreement, along with an escrow  and an appraised value 

of the property.  Negotiations are actively occurring.  FTA has approved the appraisals and 
suggested offer price to acquire the Gaynor St. Site for their review.   
 

CARTA staff continues to coordinate with FTA to ensure their staff is informed on our progress.  FTA staff 
has been very supportive in moving this project to completion.    
 
Upcoming tasks include completing the finalizing the design and construction plans, executing the 
purchase/sale agreement with the City of North Charleston, transfer ownership of the property, commence 
permitting and zoning approval, and to draft an Invitation for Bids (IFB) to secure a construction contractor.   
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions or for further information.   
 
 



 
 

CARTA 
Charleston Area Regional Transportation Authority 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  
TO:  CARTA Board of Directors  
 
FROM:  Ronald E. Mitchum, CARTA Executive Director 
 
DATE:  September 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Ridership Report 
  
 
 
As you will notice, the Ridership Report is not included on this month’s agenda. We had a glitch in 
the system and were not able to recover the data; therefore the report is extremely skewed. 
 
We have corrected the issue and will have a report for you at the October Board Meeting. Please 
feel free to contact me with any questions or for further information.   
 
 


	Agenda
	CARTA Board Meeting Minutes-7.20.16-DRAFT
	DOC001
	DOC002
	Memo to Board_Intermodal Center Update_7.7.16
	Ridership Report Memo

